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MS. FUJIE: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen, 

and I'm sorry for the slight delay. My name is Holly Fujie, 

and as a member of the Board of Governors of the State Bar 

and the Chair of the Regulation, Admissions, and Discipline 

Oversight Committee of the State Bar of California, I would 

like to welcome all of you to the annual State Bar public 

hearings on admissions, competence, and discipline in Los 

Angeles. 

Also present with me are Scott Drexel, the Chief 

Trial Counsel for the State Bar, Colin Wong, over there, 

Chief Administrative Officer of the State Bar Court, Gayle 

Murphy, immediately to my right, Senior Executive of 

Admissions, and Randy Difuntorum, Director of Professional 

Competence. 

As you may be aware, the State Bar of California 

holds two public hearings every year, one in Southern 

California and one in Northern California, to hear proposals 

from the public on Bar disciplinary procedures, attorney 

competency, and admissions procedures. 

The Staff has caused notice of this hearing to be 

given by circulating a press release to the media, posting 

notice on the State Bar's web site, and distributing notice 

to all local, specialty, and minority bars in California. 

The notice specified the time, place, and purpose of the 

meeting. 
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We have a court reporter here today to transcribe 

2 1 all the oral testimony presented today. This testimony, I 
3 1 together with any written comments that are received, will I 
4 

5  

be made available to the full Board of Governors and to all 

the members of the Committee on Regulation, Admissions, and 

6 

7 

lo 1 provide the information to Doug Hull, who is - -  

Discipline Oversight. 

If you have any supporting documentation that you 

8 

9 

l1I MR. HULL: Right here. 

are going to refer to, and which has not previously been 

submitted for photocopying prior to the hearing, please 

1 2  

13 

MS. FUJIE: - -  drifting around, or the court 

reporter, so that photocopies can be made and included in 

1 4  

1 5  

1 understand that you have taken time from your busy schedules 

the public record of the hearing. 

We understand that some of you are here to discuss 

16 

1 7  

1 9  to be here, and we appreciate that. Therefore, we I I 

your experience with a specific attorney. While it is not 

the purpose of this hearing to register complaints, we 

20  

2 1  

2 5 1  it is a confidential matter. Since the transcripts from 

respectfully request that, if you discuss your experiences 

with a specific attorney, please refrain from using that 

22 

23 

24 

Briggs Reporthg Company, Inc. 

attorney's name, and if I stop you because you're using it 

inadvertently, I will just apologize in advance. 

Until a complaint is filed in the State Bar Court, 
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these hearings will be made available to the public, we 

would appreciate your cooperation by not mentioning the 

attorney by name, but please feel free to discuss your 

experiences. The Chief Trial Counsel, Mr. Drexel, has 

offered to make himself available after the hearing if you 

wish to discuss your issue with him in a more confidential 

setting. 

Additionally, I've been asked to note that there 

are two members of the public who have submitted written 

materials but are not present to address the panel. Robert 

Fogg and Nancy Keough asked to have materials attached to 

the Los Angeles transcripts, and Philip Feldman asked to 

have materials attached to the San Francisco transcripts. 

If you have not previously signed in and want to testify 

today, please see Doug Hull or one of the staff members in 

the room. 

We ask that you complete your testimony within 10 

minutes or less, and you will be notified when your time is 

up. If you could please also only speak when you're 

standing at the podium, it makes it easier for the court 

reporter to be able to transcribe correctly. 

Doug will be calling out names in the order in 

which you've signed in. To ensure that the court reporter 

is able to hear clearly, please come to the front of the 

room when your name is called, and begin by identifying 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 
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yourself for the record. The sign-in sheet will become part 

of the record, and the court reporter will verify the 

spelling of your name by checking the sheet. 

Doug, will you please call the first name. 

MR. HULL: Yes. Richard Pintal. 

MR. PINTAL: I just signed in. 

MR. HULL: Okay. You'll wait until I call you. 

Carolyn Magnuson. 

MS. MAGNUSON: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. 

MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

MR. DREXEL: Good morning. 

MS. MAGNUSON: Thank you so much for the 

opportunity to address you this morning. My name is Carolyn 

Magnuson. I've been an attorney in the state of California 

for 30 years. In fact, yesterday was the 30th anniversary 

of my swearing in. 

MS. FUJIE: Congratulations. 

~ MS. MAGNUSON: For the past 20 years, until my 

retirement last month, I was a judge with the California 

Office of Administrative Hearings, which, as you may know, 

is the body that hears professional and occupational 

disciplinary cases for everybody other than attorneys. 

Because of that experience, I think I have a unique view and 

understanding of the State Bar Court system, its purposes, 

and its responsibilities, and that is what I've come to talk 
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3 

Earlier this year, I became aware that the 

workings of the State Bar Court were completely opaque as 

4 

Court, nor of the disposition of those cases, unless they 

far as the public was concerned. Not only had the Court 

5 

6 

7 

failed to make its court calendar available to the public 

since the shutdown of the Bar in the late 1990s, there was 

no public record of the cases that had been filed with the 

9 

10 

13 1 identity, purpose, and destination, passed that exam, and 

resulted in public discipline. Moreover, the procedural 

barriers to getting into a courtroom were daunting. I know 

11 

12 

l4 I was badged and sent on. Upon entering the State Bar 

because, not too long ago, I made that effort. 

Initially I was vetted on the first floor for 

1-71 another badge, which I am now pridefully wearing, and I was 

15 

16 

18 then asked to explain my presence at the State Bar. I 

premises, I was scanned, then wanded, then passed on, and 

finally I was required to sign in at the desk and obtain yet 

19 

20 

23 I inquired where I would find Judge Miles1 courtroom, I was 

My response, that I was a member of the public, 

seemed to bewilder the three staff members present. One of 

21 

22 

them said, "We don't get many of you here." I was also 

asked if I were authorized to go into the courtroom. When I 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 
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told all of the following: "There aren't any cases today," 

nJudge Miles is on vacation," and "I think he finished his 
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case. " 

When I persisted, a guard accompanied me to the 

door of Courtroom C, where we both consulted a printed 

calendar and agreed that Judge Miles was indeed present and 

hearing a case. At that point in time, I was allowed to 

enter the courtroom, where the sight of an unidentified 

person was so unusual that it caused raised eyebrows and 

responding shrugs all around, including the clerk and the 

judge. It had taken me 15 minutes, negotiating three access 

challenges, and ignoring multiple factual misrepresentations 

to get there. Very few members of the public would have 

persisted. 

Recently, at the urging, inter alia, of Chief 

Justice Ronald George, the Court has begun posting the court 

calendar on its web site. While this is a good first step, 

it only addresses part of the public access problem. The 

lack of public information about court filings and the 

gauntlet approach to physical access to the courtrooms still 

need to be addressed and resolved. Because the barriers to 

public information and participation have been so daunting, 

it has been years since there has been a meaningful public 

presence at the State Bar Court proceedings. 

As the Court concerned with enforcing the 

fiduciary responsibilities of the State Bar members and with 

protecting the public, the State Bar Court should be setting 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 



an example of openness and rectitude. Its failure to do so 

in the past is most disheartening. Any failure to remove 

all public access barriers as soon as possible would be 

inexcusable. I urge you to ensure that the necessary steps 

are taken to guarantee full public access to the State Bar 

Court's business. Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you very much. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 

MR. HULL: I noticed that some people came in. If 

you wish to speak and haven't signed in, would you please 

make sure that you take the opportunity to sign in. Thank 

you. 

Next up will be Ed Poll. 

MR. POLL: Good morning. 

MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

MR. DREXEL: Good morning. 

MR. POLL: Feel like two headlights in front of a 

deer. Thank you for the opportunity to talk with you this 

morning. Just for the record, my name is Edward Poll, 

P-0-L-L. 

I've been a licensed attorney in the state of 

California since 1965. I helped organize the Solo Practice 

Section of the State Bar, former chairman of the Law 

Practice Management and Technology Section, and immediate 

past chair of the Council of Section Chairs. My history, 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 
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both with state, national, and local bar associations, is 

very deep, and because of that, I have a tremendous interest 

in this body and the Board of Governors, and, in particular, 

the disciplinary system. 

It seems to me that you're sitting on a powder 

keg, and the match has been lit. You've got a budget of 

somewhere in excess of $40,000,000, and the disciplinary 

system takes over 80 percent of that. We're talking about 

$30,000,000 that goes to the disciplinary system. Not only 

can dues be reduced, but also attorneys can be helped, in my 

opinion, if the Board of Governors adopts the right 

protocol, something the Board of Governors has not yet been 

willing to grapple with. 

It's been interesting because, if you take a look 

at the State Bar's own ethics report, you will find that 

more than 50 percent of the issues coming before that body, 

that is, the disciplinary body, relate to the issue of 

managing a law practice, managing cases. I was challenged 

not long ago by an individual high within the State Bar that 

my numbers are wrong, so I looked at the report again, the 

more recent version, and I come to the same conclusion. I 

talked with Scott Drexel, and he confirmed my conclusion. 

More than 50 percent of the issues coming before 

the disciplinary staff, the disciplinary hearings, relate in 

some fashion or another to managing a law practice, managing 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 



a caseload, and I am not including in that violations of 

trust accounts, which I believe to be criminal in nature. 

That's not what I'm talking about here. So it seems to me 

that the Board, as the governing body of the State Bar, has 

an obligation to deal with this issue. I mean, it's 75, 80 

percent of your budget. If you don't deal with it, you're 

keeping your eyes closed, and thus far the Board has not 

been willing to deal with it. 

The state legislature, a few years ago, when we 

had the brouhaha, eliminated law practice management as a 

category, as an optional category, and I came before this 

body some time ago on behalf of the Law Practice and 

Technology Section, which supported my conclusion, 

requesting that the LPM category be reinstated, not as a 

mandate, but as an option, because, by eliminating that as a 

designated subcategory, this Board inadvertently said to the 

lawyers of this state that managing a law practice is not an 

important issue. 

It's clear we don't teach that in law schools, and 

there are lots of reasons for that, and this body doesn't 

have control over that, so no point to go through that, but 

this body does have, and spends its money over, the issue of 

discipline, over managing law practices, and it seems to me 

that we have to do something more than just providing a few 

courses at SCI or the annual meeting. 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 
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It seems to me that this body needs once again to 

look at the issue of MCLE, and once again needs to mandate 

3 

4 

I optional." Merely designating it and putting it out there 

law practice management. Law practice management has never 

been a mandate of this state. I believe it ought to be. 

5 

6 

When I brought the issue to the Board, I said, "All we want 

to do is make LPM a designated category, and make it 

111 
was that the ethics requirement was dropped from eight units 

8 

9 

10 

in the front lets lawyers know that it's important, and 

they, on their own, will take advantage of the education. 

When I did that, I think what I failed to realize 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

to four units, and there was no way this body or the 

legislature was going to then say, "Out of four units, two 

of them will be optional," or "One of them will be optional, 

to be replaced by LPM." That message was clearly given to 

me, and I understand that. 

17 

18 

The Board, through the then-president, John 

Van de Kamp, said, "Let's make it mandatory." Well, you 

19 

20 

241  mock committee, three voting members out of three supported 

guys jumped the gun. I mean, you pushed the issue so far 

further than I wanted to go with it that others on your 

21 

22 

23 

Board did not want to go forward with it. 

Historically, just so it's placed in the right 

context, the first time this issue was brought before the 

Briggs Reporting Cornparty, Znc. 
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tabled only because Staff said, "We need to check with the 

legislature." When it came back to the mock committee, and 

that committee said, "Okay. We have the power to go 

forward," the legislature didn't want to do it, but we, 

within the MCLE parameters, have the power. If we want to 

do that, we can go forward. 

At that point, the vote was two to one against 

taking up the resolution. One of the reasons given was by 

one of the board members, said something to the fact that 

"My constituency already has so many requirements. I don't 

want to add another requirement." We're not suggesting, I'm 

not suggesting, that we take 25 units and expand it to 26. 

I am suggesting that we mandate, of the general units 

required, that one of them, at least, be LPM. 

The point here is to put LPM back on the map, so 

that the lawyers of this state understand that it's an 

important issue. They're not going to be taught it in law 

school. They will be taught through the school of hard 

knocks. That's not the right place. That's not where 

clients are benefitted. That's not the way good management, 

it seems to me, teaches lawyers what they need to know. 

So I encourage you to look at this issue again, 

and once again think about making one of the general units 

now required of the 25 to be mandatory, and that that 

mandate be LPM. Thank you. 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 



MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you, Mr. Poll. 

Doug? 

MR. HULL: Okay. Next up is Gideon Grunfeld. 

1 MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

8 G-I-D-E-0-N, the last name G-R-U-N, F as in Frank, E-L-D. I 

6  

7 

MR. GRUNFELD: Good morning. My name is Gideon 

Grunfeld, and for the record, the first name is spelled 

1 2  letter written by the chair of our section, Jim Menton, and I 

9  

1 0  

11 

1 3  I think it's a letter dated December llth, and I'd like to I 

I am the vice-chair of the Law Practice Management 

and Technology Section, and I'm here to speak on behalf of 

the section. I believe that you have previously received a 

1 4  have that added to the record, if it's not already a part of I 
1 5  the record. I 

1 MR. GRUNFELD: Great. Thank you. 

1 6  

17 

MS. FUJIE: We have that letter. Thank you very 

much. 

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 
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Again, Jim asked me to express his apologies for 

not being able to be here today. He told me what he was 

doing, and I assure you he would prefer to be here. 

As many of you are aware, the Law Practice 

23 

24 

25 

Management Section is comprised of about 20 individuals who 

have some involvement with the practice of law on a 

day-to-day basis. Most of our members, of the executive 



1 

51 we have liaisons to various groups, such as CEB and others, I I 

1 5  

committee, are practicing lawyers. Those of us who are 

2  

3  

4  

acting as consultants have all practiced law for many years, 

usually somewhere between 1 0  and 20  years. We have members 

who are law librarians, paralegals, legal secretaries, and 

1 practice of the law. I I 

6 

7  

I We are a very diverse group, but we have come to a I I 

that have some continuing interest and involvement in the 

actual practice, day to day, and the operations of the 

121 an actual law practice, is at the heart of many of the I I 

1 0  

11 

singular conclusion, which is that knowledge of and 

improving the knowledge of the practice of law, how to run 

1 5  do today is to give you some sense of the approach that we I I I 

1 3  

1 4  

discipline and competence issues that are harming the public 

in the state of California, and so what I have been asked to 

l8 1 and you do not have an unlimited jurisdiction in terms of I I 

1 6  

1 7  

would like this body to take as we move forward. 

We know that you have an oversight responsibility, 

practice of law over the last five or 1 0  years, given the I I 

1 9  

20  

what you can do, and, as our letter pointed out, we believe 

that, given the changes that have taken place in the 

2 4 1  The first job I ever had as a lawyer was after my I I 

22  

23 

limited resources that you have - -  and I am aware of that on 

a personal level. 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 
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21 impressed with the people who were in that off ice then, and 

31 I continue to be impressed with them, and I don't envy them 

I not the resources we would all like for you to have, given 
4 

6 the importance of that mission, and the same is true for the I 

for a second. You have a very difficult job to do, and with 

people who work in the Admissions and Competence side. 

I was frankly shocked to see that there's 

something like 12 people who work on the ethics hotline and 

otherwise are responsible for the competence area that you 

have oversight for, and I was surprised that the number is 

so low, given that this is the state of California and not 

the state of Wyoming, given the population of lawyers that 

we have. So the approach that we suggest is one that's 

really multifaceted and requires some study. 

Normally I'm really adverse, and the rest of the 

executive committee would be adverse, to just recommending a 

study, because we all know that, in bureaucratic and 

administrative bodies, the easiest way to delay something, 

the easiest way to avoid ever dealing with it, is just to 

appoint a blue ribbon commission, and hope that its report 

will show up after the next election, long after it matters, 

and so that is not our intent here. What we really are 

grappling with are the various ways in which improving law 

practice management and lawyers' abilities to function day 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 



1 its staff, and its resources. 
3 I So what I'd like to do is just take a couple of 

41 minutes and suggest some of the things that could be 

I studied, and what we really recommend that we do over the 
61 next year, and those things fall into the three areas that 

7 you have jurisdiction over. They fall with respect to 

8 discipline, competence, and, to a lesser extent, 

glpotentially, even admissions. 

With respect to discipline, one of the things that 

111 
we do agree upon - -  and I think that the prior speaker, Ed 

12 Poll, who is an advisor to our section and, although not a I 
I voting member now, someone who is clearly actively involved, 

14 1 still, in our section - - he certainly alluded to some of the 
15 underlying facts and data in terms of the prevalence of the 

16 discipline problems. 

17 The kinds of things that we don't know about are 

18 things such as, given that so many clients throughout the 

1 9  country, not only here, complain that lawyers don't return 

20 their calls, that being probably the single most common 

211 reason why complaints are filed or calls are initiated to 

the State Bar, given that there are issues about failure to 

23 just represent, what are the factors that lead to that? 

24 What are the things that we could put into place to have a 

25 more preventive approach, and not leave everything to the 
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discipline system? 

lawyer has or legal office has law practice management I 

2 

3 

software and their ability to act competently? Could that I 

So, for example, is technology part of the 

solution? Is there a connection between the fact that a 

6 

7 

kind of software be used, for example, to help the State Bar 

and its staff monitor attorneys who are having problems? 

8 

9 

l2 1 ways to think about the problem. We're not opposed to the 

That would be one way that technology could be looked at as 

part of the solution. 

1 0  

11 

131 suggestion that MCLE be added as a requirement. As many of I 

The issue about MCLE is something that Mr. Poll 

touched upon, and let me kind of give you a couple of other 

151 years, and, frankly, we haven1 t really gotten anywhere with I 
1 4  you know, the section has taken that position for several 

1 7  1 over the last several years have mandated a more I 
1 6  that suggestion. So I think the changes in the practice 

211 requirement, or how many hours should that requirement be, 

1 8  

1 9  

20 

far-reaching approach. 

In addition to thinking about should MCLE be 

added, should law practice management be added as a 

2 4 1  other issues, there's also a question of, what is the scope 
22 

23 

and should it be done in lieu of or in addition to the 

existent requirements for substance abuse prevention and 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 
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25 of topic that is going to be eligible for MCLE credit? 
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For example, there are many jurisdictions in this 

country that permit practice development topics, things 

about how to grow a practice, how to do better in terms of 

client relations, to be something that's eligible for MCLE 

credit. There are other jurisdictions that do not. Given 

that one of the things we're trying to balance is the issue 

of how to get lawyers to focus on law practice management, 

allowing them to attend issues or programs that really are 

of deep interest to them, and programs where they can also 

be exposed to information that will help them and their 

clients, seems to the section a wise thing to think about. 

We're aware that there are some implementation 

questions about how you would do that, because we certainly 

understand that we would not want to be in a situation 

where, necessarily, pure marketing programs, willy-nilly, 

become eligible for MCLE credit. We wouldn't want to be in 

a position where an attorney takes, you know, 22 hours of 

rain-making programs to comply with the MCLE requirements. 

So we're aware that there are some limitations on the 

suggestion, and that's one of the reasons why we think it 

merits further study. 

There are also issues, for example, even on the 

admissions side, which I know is a little bit - -  let me just 

throw out the following suggestion of things that we could 

study together. I'm also a member of the D.C.  Bar, and the 
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D.C. Bar has a program that, after you're admitted, every 

member has to go to one day of mandatory training, and that 

training involves things like malpractice avoidance, and how 

do you make sure - -  "Here are the substantive issues about 

how the discipline process works." It's possible that 

introducing law practice management issues at that stage, 

soon after people are admitted, that might be part of the 

solution as well. 

With respect to competence, there are many 

potential issues that could be studied, and that we urge 

that be studied. For example, the State Bar already is 

effectively imposing a requirement on attorneys that they be 

13  1 very familiar and knowledgeable about technology issues, I 
1 4  

1 5  

documents. You can't do that as the COPRAC identified I 

either directly or by hiring someone who knows what they're 

talking about with respect to technology. 

1 8  

1 9  

211 without knowing something about metadata, and I'm pretty 

basically said that, at the end of a termination, lawyers, 

if asked to do so, must return electronic versions of 

2 4 1  That kind of issue, that kind of training, 

22 

23 

sure that a pretty high percentage of lawyers don't know 

what metadata is, even if their life depended on it. 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 
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2 

3 

6 Practice Management Technology Section, its chair, Jim I 

constituents that are needed to make this all work, members 

of the Bar, the State Bar and its staff, and, most of all, 

4 

5 

7 Menton, I think you for the opportunity to address you on I 

the public that we're obligated to serve and protect. 

On behalf of the Executive Committee of the Law 

this important topic, and we look forward to working with 

you on this important issue. Thank you very much. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you very much. 

MR. HULL: Okay. Next up is Kaveh Roshan. 

MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

MR. ROSHAN: Good morning. I'd like to thank you 

for making this venue available to the public. My name is 

Kaveh Roshan. First name is spelled K-A-V-E-HI last name is 

I am not an attorney. I was a small-business 

owner, and the reason I'm here is because I no longer have a 

going concern, due to the conduct of unethical attorneys, 

and my case revolved around an insurance claim, and there 

was crimes committed against me regarding my claim by the 

insurance company. The crimes involved to a degree where 
I 

this insurance company would no longer be admitted in the 

state of California. 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 



In the real-world scenario, such a scenario would 

never be allowed to prevail. This company makes too much 

money in this state, and their influence is undue, and for 

someone like me to cause them to no longer be an admitted 

carrier in the state of California is just not acceptable in 

the real world, despite any legal remedy that should be 

available to me. 

The unethical attorneys that I'm speaking of were 

serving two masters, and this was ultimately exposed a few 

years after the fact, and this was exposed in the form of a 

whistleblower document I received, privileged documents, and 

I contacted the State Bar. They referred me to an ethics 

attorney, who verified that these documents were privileged. 

However, the documents contained description of the crime 

that was committed against me. 

I followed the direction of the ethics attorney, 

and I contacted the FBI. The FBI interviewed me, and they 

did a thorough investigation, and they concluded in my 

favor, that a crime was committed against me, my allegations 

were correct, and they determined that they will not further 

investigate or prosecute the crime that was committed 

against me because I had a perfect remedy in the California 

court system, and that's a direct quote from them. 

I asked them to explain that in detail to me, and 

they said that the - -  they explained to me - -  if I appear 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 



I MR. ROSHAN: They explained to me that the I 

1 

2 

4 threshold of this crime is slightly below what the FBI I I 

23 

nervous, it's because I am. Sorry. 

MS. FUJIE: That's all right. 

71 robberies, because it ' s a low-level crime to them. They re 

5 

6 

81 into the more serious crimes and stuff . I 

normally undertakes. As a matter of fact, they were 

complaining that they don't like to even investigate bank 

I More importantly, they convinced me that I had an 

101 excellent remedy in the California court system, and they 

11 

1 2  

said that, if I prosecute my case and it went to a jury 

verdict, that the outcome would more than likely be in my 

1 3  

1 4  

l7 I The particular attorneys that I'm speaking about 

favor, and as a whole, bottom-line solution, I would be 

cured. And I was convinced that the FBI was correct, and 

1 5  

1 6  

181 openly bragged about having inappropriate relationships with 

everybody who's examined my case, including other attorneys, 

have concluded to the same thing. 

2 1  that specialized in the area of insurance bad faith, and I 

1 9  

2 0  

the judges. When I first was seeking to hire this 

particular law firm, they were one of four or five law firms 

22  

23 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 
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this particular law firm, when I visited them, was very 

interested in the case right away, and later on I discovered 

24 

25 

why they were so interested, because they had a conflict of 

interest, which I won't get into here. 



When I was ready to leave the office, without 

signing a contract with this law firm, the particular head 

attorney wanted me to hire his firm. However, I wasn't 

prepared to do that, only because I had different interviews 

with other attorneys. This particular attorney made sure 

that I did not leave his offices without embedding the 

following profound statement to me. Before I was ready to 

leave without a signing a contract with him, he asked me if 

I knew the difference between a good attorney and a great 

attorney, and I said, "No, I don't." He said, "A good 

attorney knows the law, but a great attorney knows the 

judge. 

When he first told me that, I didn't know exactly 

what he meant, and I was ready to walk out the door, but he 

made sure that I knew exactly what he meant before I left, 

and he told me that he had local access to the judge in my 

case, and, again, at that point, I had no idea what he 

meant, what he meant by "local access." I had no idea. 

Now I know exactly what he meant, because, when I 

discovered through the whistleblower document that he was 
I 

serving two masters, and that he was sabotaging my case in 

order to protect this admitted carrier, he openly bragged 

that he has an inappropriate relationship with a judge. And 

when I attempted to expose the truth in court to the judge 

regarding this whistleblower document, and even tried to 

Briggs Reporting Company, Znc. 



25 

mention the FBI investigation, every time I went to the 

danger area of the truth, I was summarily shut down. 

Now, as a businessperson, I want you to know that 

this should concern you, because I'm not an attorney. I'm a 

regular person that's out there. I'm not bragging when I 

say this, but I'm the kind of person that makes this country 

work, in every sense of the word. Without people like 

myself, and millions of others like myself, you guys 

wouldn't have a system to protect. Okay? 

So, when I stand here before you and raise my 

concerns, I fully, you know, respectfully demand that you 

understand the concern that I have, because, when people 

like myself, who believe that our justice system has any 

fidelity whatsoever, and is literally not even allowed to 

step foot in a courtroom, through summary judgments, the 

conclusion that persons like myself make is that you all are 

representative of a small, disproportionate, unethical, and 

corrupt attorneys. Okay? You all know the reputations that 

attorneys have. I'm convinced that the vast majority of 

attorneys are very good people. However, the small 

percentage definitely you should be concerned about. 

I have a query for this panel. I have evidence, 

newly formed evidence, that corroborates my allegations of 

crimes committed against me by these attorneys, through 

whistleblower documents. The particular incidence that I'm 
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talking about now is I offered - -  the attorney in question, 

the unethical attorney that I did eventually sign a contract 

with, he destroyed the attorney-client agreement in front of 

me when I filed a malpractice suit against him, because he 

didn't believe I had a copy. 

I attempted to bring this up in court in an 

allegation, in a written allegation that these attorneys had 

inherent bad faith through the destruction of this attorney- 

client agreement, and, again, this was an issue that was 

squashed on purpose, and there was no fudging this fact. It 

was specifically squashed by this particular judge. And for 

me to raise this issue, and for it not to even be heard, is 

very, very upsetting for me, because we're talking about a 

contract. Okay? 

I want you to understand that this is not just me 

trying to be profound in any way. I've put my money where 

my mouth is. I offered a one-and-a-half-million-dollar 

reward to any member of the law firm who can produce their 

own document which was the attorney-client agreement, and 

I'm actually going to be preparing a press release to the 

public saying that "Determined client offers corrupt 

attorney a million and a half dollars to produce their own 

document." You know, this is my way of trying to expose, 

you know, this fact, and, like I said, I'm putting my money 

where my mouth is. Okay? If I had more money, I would put 
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1 I have some new evidence as far as the complaint 

1 

I regarding this attorney that I'd like to submit the 
it all available for this. Okay. 

4 Disciplining Board. What reasonable assurance can I get I 

1 properly? The reason I ask this question is because I have 

5 

7 been convinced through the court system that these powerful I 

that this complaint will be heard properly and investigated 

* 1 attorneys that have undue influence on our court system are 
I able to squash the truth and hard evidence. 

lo 1 MS. FUJIE: Scott? 

11 

12 

13 

16 that you have, if you have anything here, or get your name I 

MR. DREXEL: Well, Mr. Roshan, let me say this to 

you, that I am the Chief Trial Counsel, and I would invite 

you, after you get done speaking, if you'd like to meet with 

14 

15 

171 and address so that we can get that information. I have 

my assistant, Ms. Berrio, who's sitting over here in the 

second row, she will talk to you and get any information 

l8 1 independent prosecutorial discretion, and I pledge to you 
that we'll take a fair look at your complaint, and we'll 

20 follow up on it. I 
2 1 1  MR. ROSHAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Drexel. I'm 

22 1 going to put a little star by your name on my notes. Okay? 
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MR. DREXEL: And I'm happy to give you my card as 

well. 

MR. ROSHAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very 



1 

2 

28 

much. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 

3 

4  

I MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you very much. 

MR. HULL: Okay. Next up will be Ellen Pansky. 

5 

6  

1 MS. PANSKY: My name is Ellen Pansky. I worked at 

MS. PANSKY: Good morning. Thank you very much 

for allowing me to speak today. 

9 the State Bar of California from 1978  to 1985,  first in the I 
Trial Department and then later as an Assistant General 

Counsel. Since leaving the Bar, I have done some civil 

1 2  

141 proceedings. I do a lot of consulting on ethics issues. I 

litigation, and since 1989,  I've mostly been representing 

1 3  

1 5  testify as an expert in legal malpractice cases, and do I 

lawyers in legal malpractice proceedings, State Bar 

l6 1 other types of representations relating to professional 
171 responsibility. 

l8 1 I also have been involved, over the last couple of 

1 9  

Association of Women Lawyers. I also am involved in many 

decades, in State Bar activities not limited to ethics. I 

20 

2 1  

231 ethics-related groups. I Im a longtime member of the L.A. 

am a former chair of the California State Bar Committee on 

Women and the Law. I'm a former president of the National 

24 County Bar Ethics Committee, and I'm a member/past president I 
2 5 1  of the Association of Professional Responsibility Lawyers. 
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I'm telling you my background because I want you 

to understand that I'm here as a member of the Bar who has 

devoted herself to the promotion of the legal profession and 

competence of lawyers. I fear that when I identify myself 

to State Bar-related individuals, they assume that I only am 

interested in defending unethical lawyers, and I want you to 

understand that I'm here, and I devote a lot of time to Bar 

activities, because I'm actually more concerned about 

promoting our just and sound legal system, and to make sure 

that members of the public, to the fullest extent possible, 

have a good experience with lawyers, and I do a lot of 

lecturing on a pro bono basis, again to try to promote that 

goal. 

I'm here today because I am gravely concerned 

about the direction that the discipline system has taken in 

the last couple of years. Again, as a member of the Bar 

who's interested in seeing our limited resources devoted to 

the excellence of the profession, service to the public, and 

making sure that lawyers perform competently and ethically, 

I don't want to see those precious resources wasted, and, 

unfortunately, I must tell you that I don't think that our 

resources are being properly directed. 

In the last couple of years, in my experience and 

the experience of my colleagues in the State Bar defense 

bar, we are seeing a lack of prioritization of prosecutions. 
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We are seeing hostility towards lawyers, without respect in 

some cases, and, again, I'm not saying that this is always 

true, but more often than happened in the past. 

Lawyers, typically a lawyer who's had 15, 20, 25 

years in practice, with no prior record of discipline, who 

comes before the discipline system for the first time with 

perhaps one to three client complaints, is being treated as 

if that person is a serious, intentional wrongdoer, even if 

the allegations, as some of the prior speakers, Mr. Poll and 

Mr. Grunfeld mentioned - -  even if the complaints are 

fundamentally related to office management problems. 

I believe that it is crucially important for the 

Board of Governors of the State Bar to look carefully at how 

the discipline system is being managed. I think that if you 

look back - -  and I don't know that the State Bar is 

publishing these statistics now, but in the past there were 

some publications as to the recidivism rate of lawyers who 

were charged with attendance at ethics school, and, as you 

know, a lawyer typically attends ethics school because they 

have come to the attention of the Office of Chief Trial 

Counsel, and they're either ordered into it or they 

voluntarily agree to go into the program, general ethics 

school and also trust account ethics school. 

My information, at least as of some years ago, was 

that the recidivism rate for further State Bar charges among 
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lawyers who had attended ethics school was three percent or 

less. Again, I fully endorse the suggestion that law office 

management be made an MCLE compulsory, but I think that the 

underlying message there is, if you look at the results 

obtained by lawyers who go through ethics school - -  and I 

can tell you as an aside that my clients who have gone 

through ethics school, almost to a person, rave about it. 

They think it's incredibly helpful. They learn things they 

had no idea about, and some of those things, by the way, 

relate to trust account management, which I will talk about 

in a few minutes. 

I don't think it can be denied that it is of great 

assistance to lawyers to go through that sort of continuing 

legal education, and yet, when a lawyer first comes into the 

disciplinary system, the attitude that the lawyer faces, 

typically, is one of hostility and one of great negativity. 

It is assumed that the lawyer has intentionally acted 

unethically, as opposed to giving that person the benefit of 

the doubt. As I say, typically we' re talking about people 

who have never before had any contact with the discipline 

system. 

I'm not exaggerating when I tell you that a lawyer 

with 20  years' experience who's never been here before, 

responding to a complaint by a convicted multiple felon 

writing from prison, is sometimes not only not given the 
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~enefit of the doubt, but assumed to be not telling the 

truth, and the convicted felon is presumed to be telling the 

truth, if there's a discrepancy between that person's 

statement and the lawyer's statement. 

It's not acceptable. It's not acceptable. As a 

natter of law, lawyers who come into the discipline system 

are entitled to a presumption of innocence. They're 

entitled to be heard. They're entitled to be treated with 

respect, and not with hostility. 

I'm telling you, from my experience and that of my 

colleagues, and that of a number of State Bar Court judges 

who, over the last five to seven years, have expressed 

frustration over the fact that they cannot get cases to 

settle, that cases are being filed which should be settled, 

and that in turn results in an expenditure of resources that 

otherwise would not be necessary. 

I think the turning point was the Supreme Court's 

issuance of the Silverton case. As a result of that case, 

there is a position that has been openly expressed by the 

Office of the Chief Trial Counsel that there will be no 

departure from the standards, which have been described as 

guidelines by both the Supreme Court and the State Bar 

Court, unless there's some good reason for it. 

We in the defense bar have no quarrel with that 

approach, if that were the approach that's being taken, but, 
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21 a lawyer has had a problem with a trust account that does 

1 

31 not involve any misappropriation, but, on its face, is 

33 

unfortunately, it is not, and particularly in the case where 

4 

5  

demonstrably relating to a law office management or 

bookkeeping problem. We are now being told that it is a 

6 

7 

strict liability offense, and that that lawyer must 

stipulate to either a 90-day actual suspension from 

8 

9  

1 0  
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1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  
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practice, or they will have formal disciplinary charges 

against them, and they will have to take that case to trial. 

I have asked for a response, whether that is the 

policy of the Office of Chief Trial Counsel. I have not 

been given that response, although I have asked for it on a 

number of occasions. You will not have a discipline system 

that will remain in business if every case that involves a 

bookkeeping error or that involves a trust account is tried. 

There is a backlog in the State Bar Court. I 

don't know if you're aware of that. The State Bar judges 

are double- and triple-setting trials in order to try to 

keep them within the time limitations in the Rules of 

Procedure. There's a reason for this. The reason is that 

the cases are not settling at an early stage, as they always 

have, at least since I've been involved with Bar activity, 

23 

24 

25 

since 1978 .  

Very quickly, I would suggest that you look at 

refocusing the prosecution's priorities so that they devote 



their resources to the serious matters, which everyone 

agrees they should handle in the most expeditious and 

strongest way. I suggest that you look at how there is an 

advantage to the Board of Governors and to the management of 

the Bar to include those of us who are on the other side of 

the bar at the State Bar Court. Take advantage of our 

experience. Most of us are former State Bar prosecutors, 

and we are here as a resource for you. We want to help. 

We're willing to devote our time. 

Finally, I just want to mention that there are 

some proposals regarding new discipline rules that come 

before you, most currently the ADP rules. We in the defense 

bar would like an opportunity to address the Board directly. 

We have had some opportunity to speak with the Office of the 

Chief Trial Counsel. We have not spoken to the Court, and 

we have not spoken to the Board. We ask that you give our 

perspective equal dignity before you'make any decision. 

Thank you again. I really appreciate you 

considering my comments. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you very much. 

MR. HULL: Next up is JoAnne Robbins. 

MS. ROBBINS: Good morning. 

MS. FUJIE: Good morning. 

MS. ROBBINS: Please tell me if I don't speak up 

loudly enough, because I tend to let my voice drop. 
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I on the panel and most of the people in this room. I started 

I working for the Bar in 1982. I worked for the Bar for 14 

I years, including as a prosecutor, a Chief Assistant Court 
Counsel, a Hearing Department judge, and for the last 11 

6 

7 

1°1 
speaker as articulate as Ellen is it's tempting just to say, 

years I have defended attorneys that are accused of 

misconduct. 

8 

9 

uDitto,n and sit down, but I can't do that. One reason is 

I echo everything that Ellen Pansky just said, and 

she made excellent points. The difficulty with following a 

l4 I I have represented attorneys accused of misconduct 

12 

13 

15 for 11 years. In the last several years, since the Lawyers I 

that 10 minutes isn't long enough to tell you some of the 

things that need to be done at the State Bar. 
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Assistance Program came into being, I have to some degree 

developed a specialty in attorneys who have those kinds of 

problems, and, in particular, emotional and psychological 

problems. These are the most difficult, most stressful, 

most frustrating, and most rewarding cases that I've ever 

handled. 

The Alternative Discipline Program, which deals 

with the attorneys accused of misconduct that do have 

emotional, psychological impairment, substance abuse 

problems, has been the single most important thing that the 
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Bar has done in 25 years, at least. 

When I was Chief Assistant Court Counsel in 1989, 

I became aware of some of the personal assistance programs 

in other states in our country, and we started looking at 

what California could do. We already had an alcohol abuse 

prevention program. There was the other Bar. There are 

12-step programs such as AA, Cocaine Anonymous, Narcotics 

Anonymous. There were areas where people with substance 

abuse problems could go. 

There was nothing for mental impairment problems, 

nothing. In fact, as a prosecutor for seven years, I saw 

more and more respondents come before the Bar who had 

identifiable problems, some diagnosed, some not diagnosed, 

some having been treated, gone to counseling, some not, but 

this was an area where, clearly, there was a great need. 

Thankfully, the State Bar addressed that need by 

the Lawyers Assistance Program and the Alternative 

Discipline Program, to deal with people who had those 

particular problems. Unfortunately, it has now come under 

attack by many people as an area where attorneys could go to 

get out of discipline, or game the system, or prevent 

discipline, or delay discipline. 

While no system is perfect, and there are 

certainly modifications that could be made to make the 

system better, it is not necessary that it become so 
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efficient and cost-effective that it no longer does what it 

was intended to do, and that is to help these lawyers. 

These are not case files. They're not numbers. They're not 

statistics. These are people. 

Until you have sat across the desk from someone 

who is crying and explaining to you that he has lost his 

family, he has lost his practice, he has lost his home, and 

that he got a pistol out of his safe and drove up into the 

hills to kill himself, and would have done it if his phone 

hadn't rung and it been a good friend of his, you don't know 

what these people are going through. 

These are not problems that are quick fixes. 

These are not issues that go away as soon as you put a label 

on them. These are cases where people have struggled for 

years, and sometimes decades. Sometimes they've been 

diagnosed quickly. Bipolar disorder tends to be relatively 

easy to diagnose for some people, and deep depression. 

Others are not so quick. Post-traumatic stress syndrome has 

become a much bigger issue than it was five to 10 years ago. 

These are people who need help, and sometimes this 

is the only place they go to get help, and sometimes, as 

most of you know, and especially Mr. Drexel knows, sometimes 

help has to be forced on some people. There is a tendency 

among lawyers to be brave, to be tough, "It's just a flesh 

wound. I can handle it by myself. There's nothing wrong 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 



Sometimes the only reason attorneys face the 

problem that they have is because they're accused of 

discipline. It becomes an issue that sometimes it's hard to 

get someone to face their issues, because they don't want to 

admit that they're human, that they have flaws, that they 

have weaknesses. They've been taught as attorneys, 

particularly litigators, never to show weakness, never to 

show any indication that you're not in complete and total 

101 control of the situation. Most attorneys have been raised 

that way. 

It is frequently only when faced with serious 

discipline that an attorney can finally break down and say, 

"1 can't do it by myself. I need help." Those of us in the 

defense bar push that from the very beginning, probably the 

minute we meet with someone or talk to them for the first 

time at length, "What are your problems? What was going on 

in your life?" 

They aren't susceptible of quick fixes. You can't 

put someone in a program and, in 120 days, find out exactly 

what's wrong with them and how to cure it, or treat it. It 

takes time. You can't speed people through the system. The 

alternative discipline system is supposed to do a better 

Briggs Reporting Company, Inc. 

24 

25 

job, not necessarily a faster job. 

You have to also understand that the money you put 



2 help and to properly treat them, and to put them on I 
3 1 probation, on conditions that frequently include individual 
4 counseling, always include group counseling, frequently 

5 include medical counseling and medication, perhaps, these 

6 take time to identify, diagnose, and set out a good 

treatment program. It can't be run through in 90 days. 

1 The time that you spend, the State Bar spends, 

9 treating these people, and putting them on a program where 

10 they will get better and go back to proper functioning as 

11 they did before, is well worth any additional funds that 

12 might be spent up front, because you will save those funds 

13 later down the line, because they will not be back. 

14 Comparable to what we frequently see in the juvenile justice 

l5 I system, the money spent on Girls and Boys Clubs and 
l6 1 after-school programs may be expensive, but you will save 
171 

money in the long run, because those juveniles don't come 

18 back as delinquents and criminals later on. I 
19 Most attorneys who go into the ADP program are 

20 first-timers. I have had some clients who had practiced for 

21 35 years with no problems, not a single problem in 35 years. 

One of my clients that came to an end, he had fought 

23 depression off and on, but had always managed to handle it 

24 himself, but after 35 years in practice, his wife of 30 

25 years died, his mother died, and his best friend died within 
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18 months. He completely crashed, but he could not admit 

that he couldn't handle it, because he felt like he had to 

be strong, everyone around him was depending on him, and his 

clients were not allowed to know that he had problems, and 

he ended up dropping the ball in three cases. 

There was some damage to the clients, financially, 

but this happened within a period of time where he was 

absolutely unable to deal with things. I am not excusing 

that, and he needed to be disciplined, but it needed to be 

done though the Alternative Discipline Program, so that they 

could properly address the cause of this, get this person 

back on his feet, so he could go on functioning as a good 

lawyer, as he had for 35 years before. 

I implore you to not restrict the Alternative 

Discipline Program. I beseech you to in fact enlarge the 

system, let it function as it was initially intended, and 

don't deprive these people of an opportunity to get fair and 

balanced justice and discipline, so that they can get back 

to functioning normally again. Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you. 

MR. HULL: Okay. Our last speaker, unless 

somebody else needs to sign up, is Joseph Quattrochi, 

Junior. 

MR. DREXEL: Hey, Doug. This lady right here in 

the green sweater. 
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about protecting attorneys, when they're damaging people, 

and they get court for the first time, and they've been 

damaging people for years. 

Here's the paperwork of one attorney from 
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5  
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Riverside County who was found guilty of campaign fraud, 

MR. HULL: I'm sorry. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No. 

MS. FUJIE: No, no. 

MR. DREXEL: I'm not trying to say you shouldn't 

speak, but I heard her try to signal. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: Wow. I should have worn my boots 

today. You know, you guys, I gave you a hard time last 

week. I apologize for being so stupid. 

You know, I need to go to the legislature and talk 

to Joe Dunn, Tom Harmon. I need to get new laws, because 

I'm a real estate broker. I answer to the state of 

California, not to other real estate brokers, mind you, but 

to the state of California, with regard to my license, and 

you people are dinosaurs. You need to be put into a closet, 

and you need to collect dust like the rest of the dinosaurs. 

Your time has come. You're not doing your job. You talk 

campaign contributions, and it was by another party of the 

state Fair Political Practices Commission. I want you to 

read this. A $228,000 fine was paid by this person and his 

law firm, and they are now the head of our Regents Board. 
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What is going on? You people are not doing your job. These 

people, in many, many cases, are living lives again and 

again, like super-heroes, and they don't deserve our 

respect, number one. 

Number two is, the paperwork I handed to you last 

week is very undaunting, I know, very undaunting. Here's an 

e-mail from the year 2002 where a lady had her son, her 

family member, taken away from her by the same judge pro tem 

who is the evil culprit in San Bernardino County doing 

Melody Scott's work. Melody Scott is an evil conservator. 

Again, this is related to SCSS02800, the people of the state 

of California against this man. 

You see that man's hat? He fought with Patton. 

He made the march. He was in the snow this time, in 1944, 

protecting your sorry asses. He deserves better than being 

dragged through the court system with common criminals, 

because of why? Ex parte hearings? Because of a smart 

attorney who knows how to manipulate the system? 

It's over, my friends. It's over. I will spend 

my time up in Sacramento getting laws changed. You people 

have not done your job. You're not policing your people 

that are doing illegal acts, and I, as a person who is 

responsible to the state for my real estate broker's 

license, you should be held accountable, also. Thank you. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 
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MS. FUJIE: Thank you, sir. 

MR. HULL: Okay. Viviane Koller. 

MS. KOLLER: Good morning, Monsieur, Madame. It's 

difficult for me to speak, in part because I hope you will 

understand my English, with my terrible French accent, but 

after all these person who try to say their case for or 

against lawyer, I can understand the both side, because all 

are not pommes pourries. In fact, no. We understand this 

well. That mean some lawyer can be nice and correct. Some 

others can be not, same for other people. 

So I am a citizen, licensed, Monsieur, licensed 

person, I'm sorry, and I want to speak not only for myself, 

because I have a discipline process, actually, in your 

building, against a member of your State Bar. I would like 

to say the name, but I don't mean - -  I understand you, 

Madame. So I won a case. It had the Small Claim Court 

against this lawyer. He never have paid. So I'm at the 

point now where I make another appearance, but I know 

already he will never appear like he did before, again. 

So I ask you for the reimbursement of the security 

fund, if it's possible for me, and you asked me a lot of 

things. So I already in process of follow that. I hope it 

will be found. It took me $2,000 I put in a bank account. 

I never received a phone call in the service, except to 

hassle my husband speaking, too, and (indiscernible). 
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So I was eight months, nine months of 

chiropractor. What the name? I forget that. So I'm not 

talking about that, but it's affect the health of some 

person, told you before, cannot tell the health of 

(indiscernible), of sort of like exam, like ~onsieur, maybe. 

I think your health sometime is month after month. You 

cannot handle everything. You are not in the business of 

lawyer, or just to sell and things like that. We are only a 

citizen, and you have to deal with that, to pay, day after 

day, month after month, all your family, all your money, all 

your energy, your time, your health. So you begin a little 

broken. 

So my question to you, because I have a lot. I 

have only 10 minutes. I understand. Say, this particular 

illegal, yes? And I hope you can stop that. He has even 

not an office in Los Angeles. So he has a mail box. That 

means the address is a mail box, with a suite number. That 

means like it's an office. So, if you look at his Internet 

name, he's lawyer, and "We are in New York, London, 

everywhere in the world." 

For me, I think he's a scam artist, and I called 

earlier, and someone that we can't say the name told me, 

"It's not my problem, because we just need an address to be 

a lawyer, a member of the State Bar." But it's not a real 

address, because it's a mail box. 
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So I didn't know the first time, when I hired this 

lawyer, it was a mail box. So now (indiscernible). How can 

you accept a member who has no office, who has only mail 

box? Can he receive his clients in the mail-box office? I 

don't know, because it's very special for me, yes? That's 

m y  first - -  don't he feel lack of street? So, maybe. 
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There's some other things, the firm. He's not a lawyer of 

the firm. He's, what's the name, answering machine, 

answering service. I'm so sorry for my English. I do my 

best. 

MS. FUJIE: You're doing very well. 

MS. KOLLER: But I don't know that means someone 

answer for him, but he's not here. He lives in France, in 

Paris, because he's a member of the Paris Bar, California, 

New York, everywhere, London, I mean, everywhere in the 

world. So sometime he disconnect the phone. Nobody answer 

anymore. Sometime he reconnect, so that now he's 

reconnecting, because apparently someone has a discipline 

process is actual (sic) . Yes. I think he reconnect like 

two, three weeks ago because he's afraid of you, of course. 

So what can you do against all of that, and not a 

real address that doesn't exist? It's not a good address. 

These people, I think, not only to me he takes money, and we 

never hear about him anymore. So the problem - -  I also have 

the same person here when I called, "Can you stop him to do 



2ljust Calif~rnia,~~ said. I say, Itwhat?" That's my 

51 states, California, not can you connect to block this kind 

3 

4 

(indiscernible). I can't say that. 

Why between states, and member of different 

6 

7 

8 

of person, to trap people like me like they do, you know, 

because it will be easy. We have the Internet, and the 

connection is too easy. It is there. If you have a meeting 

9 

10 

like we have today, if you have a meeting with all your 

staff, lawyer staff, maybe you can block these kind of 

11 

12 

I So, like the FBI can go everywhere, you should be 

people to do the same thing in the other states, but in the 

(indiscernible) I think will be fine, because the person 

13 

14 

to do the same thing, you know. That's the question I ask 

told me, "No, I can't do anything. We don't (indiscernible) 

London and everywhere." 

17 

18 

201 MR. DREXEL: So I want to make sure that I 

you, if there is a possibility to do things there, because 

it would be powerful for all the person who are like me, 

19 

211 understand what you' re asking, whether we can force 

like this monsieur, like some, you know, other people. 

22  1 attorneys to have a physical office, rather than - -  

23 I MS. KOLLER: First, yes, because where he receives 

251 MR. DREXEL: Well, not every attorney represents 

24 
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individual clients. Some people, they do appellate law, for 

instance, and they practice out of their home, and they 

don't necessarily want - -  if they're representing criminal 

defendants, don't necessarily want to give them their home 

address, and so they often use post office boxes and the 

like. 

Every attorney is, though, required by statute to 

have an address, a current address, at which the State Bar 

can contact them. We do allow them to have post office 

boxes, but they're supposed to be responsive to that, and if 

they are not, that in itself is a grounds for disciplining 

them. 

MS. KOLLER: If someone like me would like to see 

this lawyer, I could not. It's a mail box, and we went to 

the mail box. 

MR. DREXEL: How did you meet the attorney to 

begin with? 

MS. KOLLER: I found him on Internet, because, as 

I'm French, an American now by my marriage, by wedding, so 

it was the only person who could (indiscernible), because he 

speak French, and I'm more comfortable. So I already had a 

bad experience with another lawyer in France, after my 

mother passed away, and so it's an estate problem we have to 

resolve. It's still there. So I found this person who 

speak French. I thought we could be more comfortable, and 
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after my $2,000 in the bank, I never heard about him 

anymore. So we tried, we tried, we tried. No, thank you. 

MR. DREXEL: Well, I guess, unfortunately, that's 

a very common complaint that we get, that a client hires an 

attorney, and then the attorney does not respond to their 

phone calls or letters, or doesn't do the work. I think 

some people might characterize that as a low-level 

complaint, but that is the basic, most common complaint of 

most people, and so we do take those seriously as well. 

MS. KOLLER: So that, when I looked - -  I was 

(indiscernible). I said, "We'll come," because, if you can 

stop this kind of person to do that to others, like not only 

me, it will be very, very nice. 

MR. DREXEL: Absolutely. We're interested in that 

as well. 

MS. KOLLER: So, voila. Sorry. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. 

MS. KOLLER: Well, I (indiscernible) many things, 

but have only 10 minutes, and the problem, it's affect all 

yourself. 

MR. DREXEL: Thank you. I'm happy to meet with 

you after the hearing and get more information from you. 

MS. KOLLER: Merci. Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you. 

Do we have anybody else who wishes to speak? 
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MR. HULL: There's no one on the list, unless 

there's another member of the public here who wishes to 

address the panel. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: May I ask a question? 

MS. FUJIE: Yes, sir. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: You know, if you people are busy 

policing your own, the ones who are despicable, why don't 

you make it so uncomfortable for them, instead of having the 

dog go after his tail with regard to financing these 

endeavors of these particular - -  

MS. FUJIE: Could you speak at the podium, please? 

MR. QUATTROCHI: - -  to finance these particular 

defenses for illegal behavior, and ethics violations? 

That's just not something that is naturally embedded in 

people. That's a habit, a bad habit, and why don't you make 

it so uncomfortable for them, with fines and financing the 

defense, and your particular prosecution of these illegal 

acts, to where these people will not do it? Make them pay 

for their wrongs. You've got people that they're paying to 

defend them. I don't understand why. They're lawyers. Why 

don't they handle it? 

MR. DREXEL: Mr. Quattrochi, let me respond to 

that. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: Yes, sir. 

MR. DREXEL: There is a statute that allows us to 
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charge an attorney who has been found culpable of 

misconduct, and results in the imposition of discipline, 

public discipline, to be assessed the cost of the proceeding 

against them, and if they're actually suspended, they cannot 

come back to practice until they've complied with the 

various conditions and until they've paid those costs 

incurred by the State Bar investigating and prosecuting 

their case. So we do have that. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: I think they should go one step 

further, and in a probate case, when you walk before a judge 

in an ex parte hearing, he's looking to block your funds 

right away. Why don't you block their funds, and make it 

enormously uncomfortable for these people? They will not be 

back before you if the fine is large enough, besides the 

costs to go after them. You will be eliminating the problem 

by default. And maybe put some weight of jail behind it, 

because I'm sure that some of these people don't want to go 

see Bubba. You know, put some jail time behind it for these 

people that are creating these atrocities. 

MR. DREXEL: Well, regrettably, we don't have the 

power to incarcerate. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: Then seek the help from the 

legislature to put it into effect. That would eliminate 

some of these problems. Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you, sir. 
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I'd like to thank everybody who's taken their time 

out of their days to come here and to testify. We really 

appreciate getting the input from the public. I'd like to 

thank the Staff here for all their assistance. 

MR. QUATTROCHI: Yes. Thank you. 

MS. FUJIE: Thank you very much. Thank you. 

We ' re adj ourned . 
(Proceedings recessed.) 

I certify that the foregoing is a correct 

transcript from the electronic sound recording of the 

proceedings ,in the above-entitled matter. 
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